
 

Department of Cable and Consumer Services 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 433 

Fairfax, Virginia 22035-0045 
Phone 703-324-5949 Fax 703-653-1310 TTY 711 

www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/ 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:           December 7, 2023 
 
TO:  Tenant-Landlord Commission 
 
FROM: Rebecca L. Makely, Director 
  Department of Cable and Consumer Services 
 
SUBJECT: Tenant-Landlord Commission Meeting for December 14, 2023 
 
Please find attached the Tenant-Landlord Commission meeting package. The next scheduled 
meeting is Thursday, December 14, 2023, 7:30 p.m. at the Jim Scott Community Center 
Classroom, 3001 Vaden Drive, Fairfax, VA 22031.  
 
Please RSVP with your attendance to Susan Jones by COB on Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 
at Susan.Jones@fairfaxcounty.gov or 703-324-5877.  
 
Enclosures 
 
cc: Ellicia Seard-McCormick, Deputy County Executive  
 
 Susan C. Jones, Consumer Specialist III 
  Department of Cable and Consumer Services  
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

C o u n t y  o f  F a i r f a x ,  V i r g i n i a  

mailto:Susan.Jones@fairfaxcounty.gov


FAIRFAX COUNTY 
TENANT-LANDLORD COMMISSION 

December 14, 2023 AGENDA 
 
 
Call to Order by the Chairperson (7:30 PM) 
 
Minutes 
 

• Approval of the draft November 9, 2023, meeting minutes 
 
Report of the Director  
 
 
Report of the Chairperson 
 
 
Commission Matters 
 
 
Old Business 
 

• TLC Composition Code Change 
 
New Business 
 

• Nomination of Officers 
 
General Interest 
 

• Tenant-Landlord Commission Calendar 
• Tenant-Landlord Commission Membership  
• Tenant-Landlord Statistics 
• Community Outreach 
• Consumer Resources 



 

Minutes of the Fairfax County Tenant-Landlord Commission 
 

 
November 9, 2023 7:30 p.m.  

Government Center Conference Room 232 
12000 Government Center Parkway 
Fairfax, VA 22035 
Chairperson Chamberlain, presiding  

 
Attendance: Commissioners: Chamberlain, Otonde 
  
Absent: Commissioners:  Reid 
 
Staff:   Melissa Pickham, Consumer Specialist II 
    Consumer Affairs Branch 
 
Guests: Alfredo Diaz, tenant 
   
The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Chairperson Chamberlain. 
 
Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Otonde to approve the October 9, 2023, minutes. The minutes were 
approved, 2-0-0.  
 
Commission Matters 
 
Commissioner Otonde had no matters to report to the Commission. 
 
Report of the Director 
 
Director Makely was absent from the meeting. However, Chairperson Chamberlain mentioned the 
approved Tenant-Landlord Commission (TLC) Advisory Memo was emailed to Director Makely and the 
recommendation to send it to Supervisor Penny Gross for review and consideration.  
 
Old Business 
 
Staff explained the outcome of the complaint filed by the tenants who attended the October TLC meeting. 
The tenants and landlord negotiated a later move out date to the satisfaction, of both parties. 
 
Report of the Chairperson  
 
Chairperson Chamberlian mentioned with great sadness the passing of Supervisor Gross’s husband. He 

further stated that Supervisor Gross served and continued to serve Fairfax County with dignity for many 
years and that this is Supervisor Gross’ last term. Chairperson Chamberlain inquired as to whether 
December 14, 2023, TLC meeting was scheduled to be held at an outside location. Staff will follow up 
with the Chairperson.  
 
 



New Business 
 
1. 2024 TLC Meeting Calendar.  
 
A discussion ensued on work schedules and which day of the week would be a better fit. TLC selected the 
following dates: 
 
 

Date Location 
Monday, January 8, 2024 Government Center 
Monday, February 12, 2024 TBD 
Monday, March 11, 2024 TBD 
Monday, April 8, 2024 TBD 
Monday, May 13, 2024 TBD 
Monday, June 10, 2024 TBD 
Monday, July 15, 2024 TBD 
Monday, August 12, 2024 TBD 
Monday, September 9, 2024 TBD 
Monday, October 7, 2024 TBD 
Thursday, November 14, 2024 TBD 
Thursday, December 12, 2024 TBD 

 
2. Nomination of Officers. Chairperson Chamberlain stated since all Commissioners were not present 

tonight, the Nomination of Officers will be held at the December 14, 2023, meeting.   
 
Public Comment   
 
Chairperson Chamberlain opened the floor for any public comment. Each speaker has two minutes. He 
asked that the public member provide their name; whether they are a tenant, landlord, or public member 
within the County; and the role of the TLC.  
 
Alfredo Diaz stated he resides at Lake Anne House in Fairfax County and took the opportunity to attend 
the TLC meeting to discuss his concerns at Lake Anne House.  
 
Mr. Diaz explained that Lake Anne House is a new property and there have been ongoing issues with the 
elevators at the property. Chandler, the elevator company, claims they are waiting for parts to repair the 
elevators. Mr. Diaz requested the County get involved to ensure the elevators are repaired.  
 
Mr. Diaz discussed parking problems and fire lanes being blocked.  
 
Melissa Pickham briefly explained the role of Fairfax County Consumer Affairs. Melissa provided 
detailed information on the Consumer Affairs complaint process. She provided contact information for the 
Fairfax County Department of Code Compliance and recommended Mr. Diaz file a complaint with their 
office, as well.   
 
 
 
 



 
3. TLC Composition Code Change 

  
Article 2- Tenant Landlord Commission, Section 12-2-1 (a). -Created; staff; meetings 
Chairperson Chamberlain stated currently the Code reads: 
 
There is hereby created a Tenant-Landlord Commission. The Commission shall be composed of ten (10) 
members, three (3) of whom shall represent tenants (hereinafter called "tenant members"), three (3) of  
whom shall represent landlords (hereinafter called "landlord members"), and four (4) of whom shall  
represent the community at large (hereinafter called "public members," one (1) of whom shall be a  
condominium unit owner). 
 
Chairperson Chamberlain stated the Code has already defined tenant and landlord above. Now the TLC   
needs to determine what the composition looks like and then define what the person is as part of that 
member. He stated it was previously discussed the composition would include a stakeholder such as 
attorney who practices tenant-landlord law within the County.  
 
A discussion ensued on changing the composition to two tenant members and two landlord members, 
making the remaining six positions at-large members, or changing the composition to one tenant member, 
one landlord member, and one condominium member, and seven at large members where one could be an 
attorney, but without confining those members to certain criteria. 
 
Further discussion ensued on proposing two tenant members, two landlord members that must reside in 
Fairfax County, and the remaining six at-large members must either work or live in Fairfax County or the 
member’s organization is headquartered in Fairfax County.  

 
Section 12-2-1. -Created; staff; meetings (a) 
Chairperson Chamberlain indicated he would strike the sentence below and replace it with A Chairperson 
shall be elected by the Commission from any member of the Commission who resides in Fairfax 
County.   
 
There is hereby created a Tenant-Landlord Commission. The Commission shall be composed of ten (10) 
members, three (3) of whom shall represent tenants (hereinafter called "tenant members"), three (3) of 
whom shall represent landlords (hereinafter called "landlord members"), and four (4) of whom shall 
represent the community at large (hereinafter called "public members," one (1) of whom shall be a 
condominium unit owner). All members shall be residents of Fairfax County, Virginia. Members of the 
Commission shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for terms of three (3) years each. The terms 
shall be staggered with no more than four (4) and no less than three (3) terms to commence in any one 
(1) year. Vacancies shall be filled by the Board of Supervisors as they arise. A Chairperson shall be 
elected by the Commission from among the public members of the Commission. A Chairperson shall be 
elected by the Commission from any member of the Commission who resides in Fairfax County. The 
Commission may adopt bylaws and rules and regulations governing the conduct of its responsibilities 
and duties hereinunder. 
 
Section 12-2-2. - Duties of the commission 
Chairperson Chamberlain stated that the Commission may arbitrate tenant-landlord complaints, but it 
would be nice to add a (i) to the section that states that the TLC could hear and resolve cases that go to 
court, unrelated to rent, and the parties are looking to mediate. These cases could be heard and resolved by 
the Commission instead of taking up court time. 



 
Consumer Specialist Pickham mentioned the ability of the TLC to arbitrate tenant-landlord complaints is 
dependent on whether the tenant-landlord complaint meets the criteria under the Virginia Consumer 
Protection Act. Staff will provide information at the next meeting.  
 
A discussion ensued on Consumer Affairs’ ability to refer suspected violation of law.  Consumer 

Specialist Pickham stated if there is any agency that has enforcement authority like the Fairfax County 
Department of Code Compliance or Fairfax County Land Development Services then Consumer Affairs 
will contact the agency for assistance in resolving the tenant-landlord complaint or encourage the tenant to 
reach out to agencies with enforcement powers.  
 
Chairperson Chamberlain requested Chapter 12 be emailed to him. Consumer Specialist Pickham 
provided the information. He stated he will review it more thoroughly so that further discussion can occur 
at the next meeting.  
 
4. Discussion on Rent Subsidy offered by Employers. 
Commissioner Otonde mentioned creating change or improving on continual rent increases. Chairperson 
Chamberlain responded this action could be caused by the accidental landlord who is a person who 
purchased a house, has a low interest rate, then a life change happens, and now must move out of the area 
so that number of units for sale continues to dwindle and the number of units for rent continue to rise, but 
the demand for those rental units have not ceased. He spoke about a new conversion in Tysons from a 
commercial building to rental units. He stated when you cap the rent you have disparate impact on 
different socioeconomic classes. He stated more programs are needed that are not based on location and a 
public/private partnership that provide a pathway of assistance.  
 
Chairperson Chamberlain stated the Commissioner could have a public hearing at March 2024 meeting 
and invite representatives from Inova, Amazon, Capital One, and NVAR and have public conversation 
about a pathway forward for public/private partnerships to help renters with rent subsidies.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Otonde to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Chamberlain 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously, 2-0-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 



 



Tenant-Landlord Commission                                        

2023 Planning Calendar                                                 

December 14, 2023

January   12 



 Elections of Officers

February 9  Draft Advisory Memo 

March 23  Cancelled 

April 13  Draft Advisory Memo 

May 11  Draft Advisory Memo

June 8  Cancelled

July 13  Cancelled

August 10  Annual Report

 Meeting Logistics

September 14  TLC Composition 

 Constructive Evictions

 Draft Advisory Memo

October 12  Draft Advisory Memo

 TLC Composition

 Constructive Evictions

 Legislative Ideas

November 9  TLC Compostion Code Change

 Nomination of Officers

December  14  Nomination of Officers

2023 Meeting Calendar

2023 Items of Interest



 



   

Tenant-Landlord Commission Members 
Seat Name Commissioner's Name       Appointment Expiration 

        Date   Date 

Public Member Robert H. Chamberlain - Chairperson            GROSS 
       6/23/2020 1/31/2026 

 
Public Member 
 

 
VACANT 

          
 
 

Public Member 

 

     VACANT   

Public Member 
(Condominium Owner) 
 

     VACANT   

Landlord Member VACANT 

 

 
   

Landlord Member 
 
 

VACANT 
 

        
 

 
 

Landlord Member 
 

     VACANT   

   Tenant Member 

 

Kenneth D. Reid        HERRITY 
       12/6/2022    1/31/2024 

   Tenant Member 
 

 
      Otiya Otonde – Vice Chairperson - Tenant  

       MCKAY 
       5/18/2021 

 
   1/31/2023 

   Tenant Member 
 
 

VACANT   

Department of Cable and Consumer Services 
 

Rebecca L. Makely, Director 
  

 Cable and Consumer Services   
 703-324-5947   
 rebecca.makely@fairfaxcounty.gov   

 Susan C. Jones, Manager   

 Consumer Affairs Branch   
 703-324-5877   
 susan.jones@fairfaxcounty.gov   

mailto:michael.liberman@fairfaxcounty.gov
mailto:susan.jones@fairfaxcounty.gov


 



CONSUMER AFFAIRS BRANCH
Tenant-Landlord Summary

11/1/2023 Through 11/30/2023

Complaints Resolved 14121

Current 
Month 

Fiscal YR to 
Date 

Complaint Allegations
Current 
Month 

Fiscal YR to 
Date

Alleged unauthorized service or other activity 0 0

Alleged lack of Maintenance/Essential service(s) or 
Code Violation(s)

9 52

Alleged Failure to Comply with the Lease 
Agreement

1 8

Alleged Unfair Rental Rules 0 4

Alleged desire to Terminate Lease 2 14

Alleged Unlawful Eviction 2 5

Alleged Security Deposit Dispute 3 27

Failure to Return Rental Application Fee 1 3

Other Landlord-Tenant Problems 0 8

Alleged Improper Charges or Fees 3 15

Alleged Abuse of Entry 0 3

Alleged Failure to Provide Proper Notice 0 2

Current 
Month

Fiscal YR to 
Date

Case Inquiries 124 799

Report run on 12/4/2023 at 1:33 PM
page 1 of 1

Run by user: susan.jones@fairfaxcounty.gov



 



DATE EVENT LOCATION # of Guests Event Time Staff

12/4/2023 Consumer Knowledge Falls Church High School 50 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. MDP

7521 Jaguar Trail CH

Falls Church, VA

12/5/2023 Consumer Knowledge Falls Church High School 30 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. MDP

7521 Jaguar Trail CG

Falls Church, VA SW

12/6/2023 Cnsumer Knowledge South County High School 70

8501 Silverbrook Road 1:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. MDP

Lorton, VA

12/11/2023 Consumer Knowledge Westfields High School

4700 Stonecroft Blvd 8:00 a.m- 4:00 p.m. MDP

Chantilly, VA CH

12/12/2023 Consumer Knowledge Westfields High School 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. MDP

4700 Stonecroft Blvd CH

Chantilly, VA SW

12/18/2023 Consumer Connection Fairfax County 11:00 a.m. - 11:20 a.m. SCJ

Energy Conservation Consumer Affairs Facebook

Assistance Program

Outreach Event Calendar

December 2023



 



1 
 

Resource Items 
 
Fairfax County Department of Cable and Consumer Services  
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer  
 
Fairfax County Consumer Affairs  
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/csd/consumer 
 
Fairfax County Consumer Affairs Facebook 
https://www.facebook.com/fairfaxcountyconsumer/ 
 
Consumer Connection: Northern Virgina Long-Term Ombudsman Program  
(November 16, 2023) https://fb.watch/olZEgAVR0j/  
 
Information Items 
 
Fairfax County could lower income ceiling of for-sale workforce housing policy (more) 
 
Impact of Fairfax’s High Rental Costs and Low Income (more) 

https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/csd/consumer
https://www.facebook.com/fairfaxcountyconsumer/
https://fb.watch/olZEgAVR0j/
https://www.ffxnow.com/2023/12/01/fairfax-county-could-lower-income-ceiling-of-for-sale-workforce-housing-policy/
http://www.connectionnewspapers.com/news/2023/nov/28/impact-of-fairfaxs-high-rental-costs-and-low-income/

	November 9 2023 Minutes.docx
	Minutes
	Commission Matters
	Report of the Director
	Old Business
	Report of the Chairperson
	New Business

	TLC Yearly Calendar 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	December 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	TLC Links- 2023.docx
	Resource Items

	Fairfax County could lower income ceiling of for-sale workforce housing policy.docx
	Fairfax County could lower income ceiling of for-sale workforce housing policy

	Impact of Fairfax High Rental Costs and Low Income.docx
	Impact of Fairfax’s High Rental Costs and Low Income
	Validity of the point-in-time count


	TLC Cover Memo.docx
	FROM: Rebecca L. Makely, Director
	Enclosures

	November 9 2023 Minutes.docx
	Minutes
	Commission Matters
	Report of the Director
	Old Business
	Report of the Chairperson
	New Business

	TLC Yearly Calendar 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	December 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1


		2023-12-07T13:10:13-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




